

Gro Harlem Brundtland 格羅·哈萊姆·布倫特蘭

學歷

1964 哈佛大學公共衛生學院碩士

1963 挪威奧斯陸大學醫學系

主要經歷

2013-現在 國際長者領袖組織副會長

2013-現在 聯合國基金會董事會副會長

2010-2012 聯合國秘書長的永續發展高層小組

主要貢獻獎項

2013 International Prize of Catalonia Award

2013 The Germany Sustainability Award

2013 Global Economy Prize by the Kiel Institute for the World Economy, the Schleswig-Holstein Chamber of Industry and Commerce, and the City of Kiel, Germany

2014 第一屆唐獎永續發展獎得主

主要貢獻簡述

格羅·哈萊姆·布倫特蘭 (Gro Harlem Brundtland) 夫人領導的「聯合國世界環境與發展委員會」(通稱為布倫特蘭委員會)，有鑒於當時全球過度開發與環境資源過度消耗，認為人類必將面對這些重要的挑戰。1987年，她在聯合國大會上發表了《我們共同的未來》(Our Common Future) 的報告。此一文獻又稱為《布倫特蘭報告》，在國際數百位專家學者和利益相關者的經驗與智慧集思廣益下，正式將「永續發展」定義如下：「永續發展是一發展模式，既能滿足我們現今的需求，同時又不損及後代子孫滿足他們的需求。」永續發展此一定義與觀念，奠定了人類永續發展的基礎，提出了方向與挑戰，亦即擬善用科學和技術，努力在人類經濟發展、環境保護和社會公義三者間，尋求發展上的均衡。

《布倫特蘭報告》的直接影響，是 1992 年在巴西里約熱內盧召開的第一屆聯合國環境與發展大會 (UNCED)，亦稱「地球高峰會」 (Earth Summit)。永續發展的理念，地球高峰會進一步將之規劃成具體的行動方案，而且訂定並發佈了「21 世紀議程」 (Agenda 21)，視之為人類邁向永續發展的藍圖。全球各國和各地等不同層級，已將該藍圖用為永續發展的最高指導原則，使之直接影響了全人類未來代代永續的發展。

在「地球高峰會」上，聯合國首次也討論了全球氣候變遷的相關問題，訂定了重要的國際協議如「聯合國氣候變遷框架公約」 (UNFCCC) 及「京都協議」 (Kyoto Protocol) 等，藉以致力於延緩或降低人類所受氣候變遷的衝擊。《布倫特蘭報告》與「地球高峰會」持續影響及往後聯合國的重要會議，如二十年後的聯合國「永續發展會議」 (Rio+20) 和 Conference of Parties (COP) 會議等。

2007 年，布倫特蘭夫人受聯合國秘書長任命為氣候變遷特使，任務是協助秘書長進行各國政府和各組織之間的國際談判，以推動「後京都議定書氣候變化條約」。2010 年，她被任命為聯合國秘書長的永續發展高層小組成員，提出人類對未來永續發展的選項建議，以繼續激勵行動邁向 Rio+20 大會中所決議的「我們期望的未來」 (The Future We Want)。

擔任世界衛生組織的主席 (1998-2003) 時，布倫特蘭夫人將精力集中在促進世界各國永續和公平的衛生系統上，希望可以消除各種疾病的傳播。在她的領導下，世衛組織有效減緩了諸多全球性傳染病的傳播，例如愛滋病 (AIDS)、瘧疾和急性呼吸系統綜合症 (SARS) 等的擴散。

布倫特蘭夫人是一位卓越的全球領袖。過去三十多年來，她持續關注地球，促進人類社會的永續發展，故為人尊稱為「永續發展的教母」。

Gro Harlem Brundtland

Education

1964 Harvard University, MPH, Public Health

1963 The University of Oslo, MD, Medicine

Professional Experience

2013-current Deputy Chair of The Elders

2013-current Deputy Chair, Board of The United Nations Foundation

2010-2012 UN Secretary General's High Level Global Sustainability Panel

Awards & Recognitions

2013 International Prize of Catalonia Award

2013 The Germany Sustainability Award

2013 Global Economy Prize by the Kiel Institute for the World Economy,
the Schleswig-Holstein Chamber of Industry and Commerce, and
the City of Kiel, Germany

2014 Tang Prize in Sustainable Development

Membership

Member of the Academy of Europe

Member of the Norwegian Academy of Science and Letters

Member of the Council of Women World Leaders

Member of the Club of Madrid

Biography

Madam Brundtland has been a global leader in promoting sustainable development for the benefit of humanity for more than 30 years and 10 of them as Prime Minister of Norway (1981, 1986–89, and 1990–96) and as Director-General of the World Health Organization from 1998 to 2003. In the 1980s she gained international recognition, championing the principle of sustainable development as the chair of the World Commission of Environment and Development (the Brundtland Commission). She was awarded the 2014 Tang Prize in Sustainable Development for her innovation, leadership and implementation of sustainable development that laid out the scientific and technical challenges for the global community to achieve a better balance of economic development, environmental integrity, and social equality for the benefit of all humanity.